
 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
The City Council/Successor Agency of the City of Firebaugh 

Vol. No. 21/02-16 
Date/Time: February 16, 2021/6:00 p.m. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
  

*SPECIAL NOTICE DUE TO COVID-19 MEETING WILL BE HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE ONLY – 
THE MEETING WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC  

 
PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH 11 OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20,  

EXECUTED BY THE GOVERNOR OF CALIFORNIA ON MARCH 12, 2020 
 

Members of the public who wish to address the Council may do so by submitting a written comments to the Deputy Clerk 
via email deputyclerk@ci.firebaugh.ca.us Please provide: Council Meeting Date, Item Number your comment are 
pertaining to, Name, Email and comment, no later than 3:00 PM the day of the meeting. 
 

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (b)(2), all action taken during this teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call vote. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86036567922?pwd=bFVaOGpCL2hNemdWN0NnOHBhWlRCdz09 
Meeting ID: 860 3656 7922  Passcode: 936222 Phone: 1-669-900-9128 

 
  CALL TO ORDER 
 
  ROLL CALL  Mayor Freddy Valdez 
     Mayor Pro Tem Brady Jenkins  
     Council Member Felipe Pérez 

Council Member Marcia Sablan 
Council Member Elsa Lopez 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the Andrew Firebaugh Community Center to participate 
at this meeting, please contact the Deputy City Clerk at (559) 659-2043. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Andrew Firebaugh Community Center. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at 
City Hall, in the Deputy City Clerk’s office, during normal business hours. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items listed on the calendar are considered routine and are acted upon by one motion unless any Council member requests separate action. Typical items 
include minutes, claims, adoption of ordinances previously introduced and discussed, execution of agreements and other similar items.  

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – The City Council regular meeting on February 1, 2021. 

 
 

mailto:deputyclerk@ci.firebaugh.ca.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86036567922?pwd=bFVaOGpCL2hNemdWN0NnOHBhWlRCdz09
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2. WARRANT REGISTER – Period starting January 1, and ending on January 31, 2021. 

 
January 2021  General Warrants  #40641 - #40761  $   1,165,703.31 

Payroll Warrants  #71429 - #71455  $     131,479.43 
TOTAL             $   1,297,182.74 

 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  

 
None 
 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
3. RESOLUTION NO. 21-06 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIREBAUGH 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF, LOCAL GOVERNMENT PLANNING 
SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS. 
 
Recommended Action: Council receives public comment & approves Res. No. 21-06. 
 
 

4. LUIS PEREZ, OF BRYANT JOLLEY, CPA OFFICE, WILL PRESENT A REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD FY 2019-2020, ENDING June 30, 2020.   
 
Recommended Action: Council receives public comment & reviews. 
 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
5. Government Code Section 54957 

 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION: City Manager. 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Certification of posting the Agenda 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I am employed by the City of Firebaugh and that I posted this agenda on the bulletin boards at City Hall, 
February 11, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. by Rita Lozano Deputy City Clerk. 

 



MEETING MINUTES
The City CounciVSuccessor Agency of the City of Firebaugh

Vol. No. 21102-01

PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH lt OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20,
EXECUTED BY THE GOVERNOR OF CALIFORNIA ON MARCH t2,2020

City Council Meeting held via teleconferencing
*Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953 (b) (2), all action taken during this teleconferenced meeting

shall be by roll call vote.

Location of Meeting:

Date/Time:

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL Mayor Freddy Valdez
Mayor Pro Tem Brady Jenkins
Council Member Marcia Sablan
Council Member Elsa Lopez
Council Member Felipe P6rez

ABSENT:

OTHERS: City Attorney Jim Sanchez; City Manager/Acting Public Works Director, Ben Gallegos; Deputy Clerk, Rita
Lozano; Finance Director, Pio Martin; Police Chief, Sal Raygoza; Fire Chief, John Borboa; City Engineer,
Mario Gouveia, Fernando Campa, Joyce Dale of Senator Anna Caballero's Office & others.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Council Member Perez led pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Motion to approve agenda by Council Member Sablan, second by Council Member Jenkins, motion passed by 3-0 vote. No
reply from Perez, & Lopez"

PUBLIC COMMENT None

PRESENTATION None

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - The Citv Council reeular meetine on January 19. 2021.

Motion to sccept Minutes by Council Member Sablan, second by Council Member Perez, motion passed by 4-0 vote. No
reply from Lopez

PUBLIC HEARING

2. RESOLUTION NO. 21-05 - A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2O2O COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM- CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE ROUND 1 (CDBG-CVI)
STANDARD AGREEMENT TO ADD ADDITIONAL FUNDS FROM THE 2O2O COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM- CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE ROUND 2 AND 3 NOFA DATED DECEMBER 18.
2020.

Open Hearing at 6:05 pm - No Comment given - Close Hearing at 6:06 pm.

Motion to accept Res. No. 21-05 by Council Member Sablan, second by Council Member Perez; notion passed by 5-0
vote. No reply from Lopez

Andrew Firebaugh Community Center
1655 13th Street, Firebaugh, CA 93622
January 19, 20211 6200 p.m.

Meeting called to order by Mayor Valdez at 6:00 p.m.
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NEW BUSINESS

3. RESOLUTION NO. 21-04 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF FIREBAUGH
APPROVING AN AMENDED PAY SCHEDULE FOR POLICE RESERVE OF'F'ICERS.

Motion to approve Res. No. 2l-04 with amendment to Exhibit A, to change the proposed rate of 517.50 to $20.00 on
sssigned patrol shift rate, , by Council Member Jenkins, second by Council Member Perez, ,notion passed by 5-0 vote.

STAFF REPORTS

Y Citv Attornev Jsmes Sanchez - two items, 1) 2021 Brown Act update book will be provided to Council, 2) Webinar being
offered for ABl234 between 9am-l lam on Thursday, February 11,2021.

Y Finance Director, Pio Martin - Working with the Auditors, they may be submitting the draft this week, will bring to council
at Tuesday's special meeting. This month, there will be an increase to utility rates, Will start working on the budget, so please

submit items that are needed or wanted for the next budget.

Y Citv Engineer, Mario Goaveia - Update on sewer project, weather caused a halt last week, but it is still on schedule.

Y Fire Chiefl. John Borboa - taking care of citizens and responding to calls.

Y Police Chief, Sal Raveoza - Received an email link regarding app for COVID-l9 Cases, we are good compared to other
cities on cases in the city. Officers are doing a great job.

Council Member Sablan replied with the help of Mark Benjamin & Mr. Pacheco offices, we've been able to provide the
vaccines to local farmworkers. We are working on obtaining a freezer & thermometer to create a local vaccine site in
Mendota to be equally shared between Firebaugh & Mendota. Mr. Benjamin stated there is still a shortage on vaccines for
Fresno County & with a second doses needed, we have to conserve what we currently have to be able to provide the
individuals that received their first short, so it causes an issue to provide to others that need their hrst vaccine. Mrs. Dale,
added, the Senator is willing to refuse to take a vaccine shot until the farmworkers receive their vaccines first.

D Citv Msnaser. Ben Gsllesos - Sewer line project is going smooth, with no complaints. 8th Street is going to bid for
sidewalks, curb & gutter project. VFW is on scheduled for completion in April. Hoping to be starting the Fire Station project
in three weeks. Thanked Public Works Department for doing an awesome job, there was no real flooding in the street, did
have two trees come down & we offered to help but they owners had to sign a waiver for damage, if city employees helped
with the removal of the tree on their property. There is sand bags available for anyone that is interested.

D Council Member Lopez - thanked the staff for the good job everyone is doing, Police, Fire, Public Works Departments and
City Hall staff.

D Council Member Sablan - I also like to thank everyone & Ben for trimming the Rose Garden, it looks really good.

Y Council Member Perez- nothing to report, but would agree with Council Members Lopez & Sablan & thank everyone:

Y Council Member Jenkins - Nothing to report, also agreed with the Council Members & thanked staff.

D Council Member Valdez - Echoed what the previous Council Members said, and thanked the staff, the daily operations
doesn't function without all of you guys, you are all greatly appreciated. Working with COG on housing opportunities &
resources. As well as with transportation to get a charging station, & signed a letter of support. COVID-I9 cases are on the
rise with 30 new cases in the week, we must lead by example to keep the number down.

Y Deputv Citv Clerk. Rits Lozano * Please complete your Form 700, it's time again, you can provide a hard copy or complete
on the website. For those of you that would like to attend the training provided by Lozano Smith, email mail me or you can
register yourself, I emailed you the information last week.

CLOSED SESSION None

ADJOURNMENT Motion to adjourn by Council Member Jenkins, second by Council Member Perez; motion passed
by 5-0 vote st 6:57 p.m.



AGENDA ITEM NO:

COaNCIL MEETING DATE: Februarv 16,2021

SUBJECT: Warrant Register Dated: January 1,2021-January 31,2021

RECOMMENDATION:

In accordance with Section 37202 of the Government Code of the State of California there is
presented here with a summary of the demands against the City of Firebaugh covering
obligations to be paid during the period of:

JANUARY 1,2021 - JANUARY 3I,2O2I

Each demand has been audited and I hereby certify to their accuracy and that there are sufficient
funds for their payment as of this date.

IT IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED THE CITY COUNCIL
APPROVE THE REGISTER OF DEMANDS AS FOLLOWS:

GENERAL WARRANTS ............ ...........# 40641 - #407 6r
PAYROLL WARRANTS............. ...........# 7 I 429 - #7 I 455

TOTAL WARRANTS

REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

MEMORANDUM

$ 1.16s.703.31

$ 131 .479.43

s 1,297,182.74



Check

Number

39948

CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 202t- JANUARY 31,2021

Net

Name Amount

Check

Date

1I1II2O2I WESTERN EXTERMINATOR ( $

$

$

$

$

Description

(47.25) Cl# 039948 Reversed

(38.00) Cl# 039948 Reversed

(70.00) Ck# 039948 Reversed

(47.25) Ck# 039948 Reversed
(59.50) Cl# 039948 Reversed

Check Total: $ (262.00)

40641 II5I2O2I ALERT.O-LITE,INC 176.37 ASPHALT PATCH

40642 U5l202r AT&T 272.36 ALL DEPT #93910t2024

40643 II5I2O2I SEBASTIAN 59.95 SENIOR CENTER SECLruTY

40644 II5/2021 FERNANDO CAMPA 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40645 II5I2O2I MATTHEW GARCIA 3OO.OO HEALTH INSIIRANCE STIPEND

40646 1,666.66 JOHN BORBOA MONTHLY STIPEND

40647 II5I2O2I HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVI, $ 634.31 CHRISTMAS LIGHTS/STREETS

40648 II5I2O21 BRADY JENKINS $ 3OO.OO MONTHLY STIPEND ATTENDANCE

40649 II5I2O2I JMP OFFICE TECHNOLOGIES $ 7O3.II FOLDING MACHINE YEARLY

406s0 U512021 RODDY A. LAKE $ 275.35 POLICE MEDICAL RETIREE

40651 v512021 SAMPSON LEE 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40652 11512021 VANESSA LINARES $ 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40653 U512021 SANDRA J. MARQUEZ $ 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40654 II5I2O2T MID-VALLEY DISPOSAL $ 28,818.49 DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR JAN2O21

40655 II5I2O2| RICARDO MONAY 3OO.OO HEALTH INSIIRANCE STIPEND

40656 II5I2O2I JESUS PALACIOS 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40657 II5I2O21 SALVADOR RAYGOZA $ 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40658 II5I2O2I RODOLFO TABARES 3OO.OO HEALTH INSURANCE STIPEND

40659 USI202| U.S. POSTMASTER 845.00 UTILITY BILLING JANUARY 2021

$

$

$

$

$

II5I2O2I GOLDEN ONE CREDIT UNION $

$

$

$

$

$

40660 USI202| DATAPATH pa$e r of 4500'00 MONTHLY BILLING FoR JAN2021



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Check

Number

Check

Date Name

II5I2O21 ALFRED VN-DEZ

Net

Amount Description

$ 3OO.OO MONTHLY STIPEND ATTENDANCE

17.75 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND

28.43 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND

30.11 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND

85.95 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND

57.32 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND

47,209,18 ME CHECK DECEMBER 2O2O

101,969.08 PAYROLL ENDING 0U0812021

279.39 PD WASHABLE FACE COVERING

4066r

40662

40663

40664

40665

40666

40667

40668

40669

40670

4067r

40672

40673

40674

4067s

40676

U5l202l

11512021

U5l202l

Usl202r

U5l202l

UtU2021

U13l202l

Ut4l202t

UI4l202t

Llt4l202t

Ut4l202t

llt412021

t/141202t

t/r4/2021

ur4/2021

8.69

8.73

25.51

17.58

5.86

50.62

t6.65

PEDRO CERVANTES- DUENA $

INC. GATEWAY HOMES $

INC. GATEWAY HOMES $

IRMA GONZALEZ $

NEFTALI SANTILLAN $

CITY OF FIREBAUGH $

CITY OF FIREBAUGH $

ABSOLUTEEXHIBITS,INC. $

AGRI-VALLEY IRRIGATION t $

Check Total: $

ALA $

AM PRINT & DESIGN $

ARDENT GENERAL, fNC. $

CED-FRESNO $

COMCAST $

COMMUNITY MEDICAL CEN' $

COUPLING SCHEDULE/COMPRES S

TRUCK#32-GLOVVES
STEEL GOPHER/GAUGE
CONCRETE

CONCRETE
HOSE UTILITY/RINGLOCK
PRIMER/CAP SCHEDULE

$

$

$

$

$

$

133.64

65.00 PD COMMUNITY CALENDAR AD

113.14 PD MATTE VINYL BANNER

440,326.28 PROJECT #20-IO VFW HALL

502.08 PW-PARTS

739.92 PD TNTERNET #909093831

175.00 NOVEMBER2O2O BLOOD DRAWS

40677 llt4/202t CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LL( $ 212.18 REALQUEST DECEMBER 2020

40678 III4I2O2I FRESNO COLI-NCIL OF GOVEF $ 2,OOO.OO CONTRIBUTION FOR MULTI

40679 III4I2O2I DATA TICKET INC $ 200.00 NOVEMBER 2020 DELTNQUENT

40680 lll4l202l DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ea$e 2 of 12140.00 NOVEMBER2l2} BLOOD ALCOHOL



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Check

Number

40681

Check

Date Name

I/I4I2O2I EXCEL SIGN COMPANY

Net

Amount Description

$ 459.97 PD UMT#4-GRAPHICS SIDE
459.97 PD UNIT#6-GRAPHICS SIDESs

Check Total: $ 919.94

$ 2OO.OO PD LINIT#4-TOWED TO CITY YARD

44.10 PW-SHOP

$ 37.14 DIELECTRIC GREASE
460.33 CONTACT KITs

Check Total: $ 497.47

$ 204.32 GREEN LASER CHECK PAYABLE
203.80 W2nO99 FORMS WITH ENVELOPE$

Check Total: $ 408.12

40682 1IT4/2021 FIREBAUGH TOWING

40683 1/1412021 FRESNO OXYGEN

40684 I/I4I2O2LGRAINGER,INC

4068s U141202r GRAND FLOW

40686 II14I2O2T HCL MACHINE WORKS $

40687 1114/2021HINDERLITER, deLLAMAS $

40688 III4I2O2I LG ELECTRIC

47.72 SWEEPER-UNIBALLS

7.68 QTR 2 2020 AUDrT SERVTCE

2OO.OO PD SERVICE CALL/BREAKER I

16.26 PD.RADIALPATCH
I6.20 PD-RADIALPATCH
I2.OO PW UTILITY TRAILER VALVE
44.46

68.59 WATER TREATMENT PLANT
78.94 t32s O STREET

25.77 PD UNIT#4-RESISTOR
344.41 PD#4-BCM

$

40689 III4I2O2I MANUELS TIRE SERVICE,IN(

$

$

$

$

Check Total: $

40690 IIL4I2O2I MID-VALLEY DISPOSAL $

$

TI14I2O2I O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC $

$

Check Total: $ r47.53

40691 II14I2O21 NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL $ 2,476.30 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

406q2

Check Total: $ 370.1 8

40693 T/14/2021PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 81.48 FIRE DEPT #3228327255-0
1,346.07 TOMA TEK #67 59522333-9

$

$

40694 r/t412021RDO EQUTPMENT CO. $

Check Total: $ I,427.55

357.59 BELT/PART

$40695 1/t4/2021ruANSANCHEZ

Page 3 of 12

I5O.OO WORK BOOT REIMBURSEMENT



Check

Number

Check

Date

CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 3t,2021

Net

Name Amount

40696 llt4l202l SHAPE, INC

40697 I/I4I2O2I SHEILA GARCIA

$

$

$

Description

T2,520,78 PARTS

6,730.62 BASIC REPAIR KIT
853.00 LABOR, HAZMAT AND PREP

Check Total: $ 20,104.40

150.00 BLOOD DRAW CASE 20-1776

40698 I/I4I2O2I STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT PD-SUPPLIES

PD-SUPPLIES

PD-SUPPLIES
PD-SUPPLIES

PD-PRINTER

Check Total: $ 949.s1

40699 U141202t RODOLFO TABARES $ 22.51 REIMBURSEMENT OF DMV FEES

4O7OO I/I4I2O2I TECH MASTER MANAGEMEI. $ 4O.OO PD PEST CONTROL

4O7OI III4I2O2I THOMASON TRACTOR COMI 3.79 BOLT
11.87 PW-BLOWER
21.84 WASHER/HUB

Check Total: $ 37.50

40702 lll4l202t u.s. BANK EQUTPMENT FrNA $ 140.78 RNT/LEASE EQUIP t2/20-0U21

40703 Ut4l202tDATAPATH $ 4,409.13 SWITCWCAREPACK 3 YEARS

40704 U221202tSYNCB/AMAZON

$

$

$

$

$

$

121.42

8.91

73.90

t9.4r
725.87

$

$

$

Check Total:

49.66

29.47

34.44

37.23

t07.96
258.76

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

PD-LINIT#4
PD-OFFICE EVIDENCE
PD-EPASS BATTERIES
PD-EVIDENCE ENVELOPES
PD-REPAIR COMPUTERS

40705 U221202t ANTHONY'S SHOP 247,64 SWEEPER #40 REPAIR

40706 ll22l202t AT&T 759.26 ALL DEPT TELEPHONE/INTERNET

40707 t/221202t AT&T 74.19 FIRE DEPT INTERNET

11221202r AUTOZONE COMMERCTAL (1 $ 129.61 FD-LTNTVERSAL LrFT SUPPORT

$ (108.03) FD-RETURN

$ 105.79 PW SWEEPER.OIL

$ 26.98 PW-AIR FILTER

$ 52.90 PW-SWEEPER

Pa$e 4 of L2 14.03 PW-ANTIFREEZE/COOLANT

40708



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1,2021- JANUARY 3t,202t

Check

Number

40708

Check

Date Name

t/221202t AUTOZONE COMMERCTAL (1

Description

PW#2-DOOR HANDLE
FD.LTNTVERSAL LIFT SUPPORT

FD-LINWERSAL STARTER
PD#18-BULB
PW-ZEREX
PD TINIT#II-BULB
PD LINIT#8-BULB
PD#6-LABEL AND STICKER
PD LINIT#3-CLEANER AND POLISH

PD#4.CONTROL MODULE
DIXON MOWER-SPARK PLUG
PD-RETURN

FUSE

MANIFOLD PD#4

PD#4-MANIFOLD
PD LINIT#4-BLOWER MOTOR
PD-RETURN
PD#4-BATTERY
PD-DURALAST
PD-RETURN

Net

Amount

22.66

64.75

4.50

17.27

21.58

14.03

t7.27
8.09

9.r7
260.21

2.90

(260.2t)
10.56

201.90

37.78

29.46

(37.78)

156.91

21.58

(21.58)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Check Total: $ 802.33

40709 I/2212021 BSK&ASSOCIATES,INC $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

37.50

70.00

425.00

45.00

37.50

70.00

55.00

45.00

56.25

67.50

105.00

82.50

90.00

42s.00

s5.00

45.00

67.50

82.50

56.2s

37.50

LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB
LAB

ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSN
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS
ANALYSIS

Check Total: $ 1,955.00

1/2212021 CALIF WATER ENVIRONMEN $ 288.00 MEMBERSHIP/CERTIFICATION

Page 5 of 12
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Net

Name Amount

Check

Number

407tt

40712

40713

407t4

407t5

40716

407t7

U221202t

U221202t

U221202t

U221202r

112212021

Check

Date

II22I2O2I CASCADE FIRE EQUIPMENT I $

$

$

Check Total: $

CED.FRESNO S

COLLINS & SCHOETTLER $

COOK'SCOMMLINICATIONS $

EMERGENCY REPORTING $

EPPLER TRUCK SERVICE $

II22I2O2I FERGUSON WATERWORKS # $

$

Check Total: $ 628.79

40718 1I22I2O2I FIRST BANKCARD 198.55

I 63.1 5

119.60

457.84

582.78

t94.29

325.72

16.30

865.35

21.01

zts.93
tt.49

233.95

86.32

49r.29

33.56

41.67

t29.29
r21.35

882.91

310.82

548.46

279.39

70.83

5.00

Check Total: $ 6,406.85

Page 6 of 12

Description

187.25 FD-TURNOUT CLEANER CASE
181.40 FD-HOSE

165.20 FD-PIKE POLE

s33.8s

274.87 PHOTO CNTL

3,295,00 CITY PLANNING DECEMBER 2O2O

66.16 FD-VOLUMNE KNOB/CHANNEL K

1,633.00 FIRE PACKAGE RECURRING

407.60 FD-REPLACED INVERTER 93'

500.76 CLAMP/PIPE CUTTER
128.03 CLAMP

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

PD-WALMART XMAS DRTVE THRU
FD-EBAY PORTABLE RADIO
FD-PAYPAL EBAY RADIO KEYPAD
FD-PAYPAL EBAY RADIO
PD-DD'S XMAS DRTVE THRU
PIO-BULK APOTHECARY HAND
BEN-AMAZON PART FOR NOAH
BEN-DOLLAR GENERAL XMAS
BEN-WALMART XMAS RAFFLE
FD-CHARGE
FD-AMAZON CARPORT CANOPY
FD-APPLE.COM
FD-LED LIGHTING GRILLE LIGHT
FD.AMAZON HAND WIPES
FD-EBAY KENWOOD RADIO
PD-HARRIS RANCH CHEIF MEETING
PD-PEOPLEFACTS
PD-SHUTTERFLY ENVELOPES
PD-SHUTTERFLY CARD
PD-FIVE BELOW XMAS DRTVE

PD-MARSHALLS XMAS DRTVE THRU
PD-FAMILY DOLLAR XMAS DRTVE

PD-ABSOLUTE EXHIBITS MASK
PIO-KERMAN FLOWER SHOP

PIO-DYN.COM



CITY OF FIREBAUGII ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1,2021- JANUARY 31,202t

Check

Number

Check

Date Name

I I22I2O2I FRESNO OXYGEN

Net

Amount Description

705. 10 POLICE/FIRE BUILDING
720.07 REGIONAL TRANSPORT

720.26 SITE PLAN REV 2O2O

725.01 PUBLIC WORKS GENERAL
725.12 TASK 1 MULTI-BENEFIT
725.12 TASK 2 MULTI.BENEFIT
725.T2 TASK 2 MULTI-BENEFIT
73O.O8C CDBG SEWER LINE REPAIR
730.09 SRF WWTP DESIGN

7 4O.T3D 201 9 CDBG WATERLINE
7 4 5 .28D CML- 5 22 4 (027 ) ALLEY
7 4s.29D MCL-'224(026) J &r
775.10 LOT LINE ADJ 2019-

780.02 CENCAL BUILDERS
780.03-1 GREYSTONE ESTS

7 80.03 -2 GREYSTONE ESTS

780.03-3 GREYSTONE ESTS

785.29 EXPANSION VALLEY HEALTH
785.31 9974 N. DOS PALOS

407t9 $ 275.64 FD-MEDICAL OXYGEN

40720 II22I2O2I FRESNO COLINTY FIRE PROT $ 780.25 FD-MOBTLE EQUTPMENT GRAPHTC

4072r U221202t MARrO GOMEZ $ 179.38 FACILITY RENTAL REIMBURSE

40722 1122/2021 GOUVEIA ENGINEERING, IN( $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

I,383.38

1,134.00

1,382.06

110.2s

566.25

\,282.50

2,227.50

24,263.06

125.00

16,920.00

2,010.09

t,527.26

81.38

1,249.50

1,102.50

147.00

147.00

1,302.00

827.00

58,787.73

40723 II22I2O2I HCL MACHINE WORKS 89.66 FD-LABOR/SHEAR SHEET/SMALL
496.73 FD-HOSE RAIL P-150

Check Total: $ 586.39

40724 1I22I2O2I HOWELL RESCUE SYSTEMS ] $ 3,226.20 FD.CUTTEWSPREADER/PUSH

40725 II22I2O2TKIMBALL-MIDWEST $ 180.75 SHOP-PART

40726

Check Total $

$

$

1122/2021 KRAZAN & ASSOCIATES, INC $
$

620.00 VFW BUILDING PROJECT

745.00 CDBG SEWER LINE REPLACEMENT

Check Total: $ 1,365.00

40727 TI22I2O2I MANUEL'S SMALL ENGINE R $

40728 I/2212021 CSGCONSULTANTS,INC.

52.37 DIXON MOWER REPAIR

6,726.00 HOUSE BUILDING SERVICES
5,102.68 BUILDING PLAN REVIEW SERVICE

165.00 FIRE PLAN REVIEW SERVICES

$

$

$

CheckTotal: $ 11,993.68

PageT of 12



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Check

Number

40729

Check

Date Name

| 122/2021 QUrLL CORPORATTON

40734 U22/202r TELSTAR

168.75 20-21 SUCCESSOR AGENCY
33.75 SB34I COMPLIANCE MONITORING

Net

40732 1122/2021 SOLORIO TAYLOR TRANSLA $

40733 1122/2021 SLIN'S INTERNATIONAL COR $

$

Check Total: $ 202.s0

Check Total: $ 54.42

$

$

Check Total: $ 2,256.00

$ t2.s4
$ 23.80

$ s4.48

$ i7.33

$ 27.18

$ s9.60

$ 127.48

$ 31.18

$ 4s.3s

$ 32.37

$ 31.74

s 7.34

$ 16.07

$e 8 of L2 13.38

4O.OO TRANSLATION CDBG FUNDS

36.28 PAPER ROLL TOWELS
18.14 SHOP-PAPER ROLL TOWELS

Description

CREDIT STORAGE BOX RETURN
CALENDARS FOR BEN
PWPD-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

CITY HALL-TOILET PAPER/LYSOL
COPY PAPER CITY HALL
CITY HALL-PULL TOWELS
CITY HALL-OFFICE SUPPLIES

CITY HALL-PULL TOWELS
PD-TOILET PAPER

CITY HALL-PULL TOWELS
PD-PULL TOWELS
PD-PULL TOWELS
RITA-EXPANDABLE FOLDER
CITY HALL-OFFICE SUPPLIES

BLACK TIES
PD-TUBE
ALLS IN BOX/GLOVES
DEF FLUID
TAPE
HEATER BLACK
SWEEPER-HOSE FITTING
WATER SITES-PIPE INSULATION
CABLE.XMAS TREE
PARKERS PARK-LOCKS
RESTROOM-LOCK
SCREW ASSORTMENT
ALLS IN BOX
WARM LIGHT BULB

Amount

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

(2e6.88)

16.s0

303.38

127.38

356.19

52.90

202.79

52.90

52.90

s2.90

52.90

52.90

46.42

2t7.38

Check Total: $ 1,290.56

40730 1122/2021 ROLFE CONSTRUCTION COM $ 162,983.90 SEWER LINE REPLACEMENT

4073r U22/2021 RSG,INC $

$

1,127.00 CALIBRATIONS ON FLOW METER
1,129.00 TROBLESHOOT ISSUE

40735 1122/2021 THARP'SFARMSUPPLY

Pa



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Check

Number

4073s

Check

Date Name

1122/2021 THARP'S FARM SUPPLY

Net

Amount

17.33

12.86

42.67

27.80

93.07

2.69

62.29

13.59

87.57

27.85

2.t6
8.27

6.51

43.40

18.t2
t2.54
9.77

18.s 1

32.1.3

13.12

37.58

13.s6

t7.33

20.79

140.s6

68.55

Check Total: $ 1,350.46

Description

DEF FLUID
LUGS/SCREWS

SEWER-FLEX COUP

CAP SCREWAIUT
PD-ELEC HEATER
BLANK COVER

PIPE/ELBOW
A,rAir{ BATTERIES
PLUG/OIL
SERVICE TRUCK-REDHOT GLUE
SERVICE TRUCK-COUPLER
BUTANE FUEL
BRUSTVSTRAINER

CAP SCREWAIUT/LOCK WASHER
FLAP DISC

BLACK TIES
MASTER LOCK
MALDONADO RESTROOM-CLEANE
ALLS IN BOX
ELBOW
EXT. CORD
SPONGE KIT/SCROURING PAD
DEF FLUID
DTINKLE LIGH S -COUPLING
PLUG/SOLAR LED
PD-9VOLT/SCRAPER/ROOF CEMENT

SHOP

SHOP

COMMLINITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMLINITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMTINITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMI-IMTY CENTER
CITY HALL

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

40736 1122/2021 UNIFIRSTCORPORATION 30.88

91.99

20.33

14.33

93.99

20.33

14.33

9r.99
20.33

t4.33

1 18.14

20.33

14.33

Check Total: $ s65.63

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

40737 II22I2O2I VERZON WIRELESS

Page 9 of 12

38.01 BRADY'S TABLET INTERNET



Check Check

CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 3t,2021

Net

Number

40738

Date Name

II22I2O2I WEST SIDE DRUG STORE

Amount Description

10.5I FD-ADVIL
12.57 FD-DURACELL

Check Total: S 23.08

40739 II27I2O2I CITY OF FIREBAUGH $ 99,803.i7 PAYROLL ENDING 0v22t202t

40740 TI29I2O2I ADAMS ASHBY GROUP, LLC 4,5OO.OO VFW HALLiSEWER LINE PROJECT

1,2OO.OO VFWHALL PROJECT

4,5OO.OO FIRE STATION PROJECT 20

Check Total: $ 10,200.00

40741 II29I2O2I A.M. PECHE & ASSOCIATES I $ 2,887.75 2OI9.2O DISCLOSURE REPORT

40742 I/2912021 ARDENT GENERAL, [NC. $ 55,833.19 PROJECT #20-IO VFW HALL

40743 ll29l202t AT&T MOBTLTTY $ I,339.01 CITY HALL/PWCOTINCIL CELL
629.88 PD TNTERNET #2872850s2476$

Check Total: $ 1,968.89

40744 1129/2021 CORBIN WILLITS SYSTEMS $ 1,072.61 ADMINISTRATION C/W SERVICE

40745 II29I2O2I FRESNO COUNTY EDC s 6,000.00 MEMBERSHIP FEES 71U20-6130t21

40746 II29I2O2I FIREBAUGH SUPER MARKET $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

25.89

27.28

25.89

25.89

8.45

2s.89

25.89

21.25

29.t9
25.89

25.89

6.76

DOG FOOD
DOG FOOD
DOG FOOD

DOG FOOD
DOG FOOD

DOG FOOD

DOG FOOD

POLICE DEPT SUPPLIES

POLICE DEPT SLIPPLIES

DOG FOOD
DOG FOOD

DOG FOOD

Check Total: $ 274.t6

40747 I/29/2021 GUTHRIE PETROLEUM, INC 993.13 BULK LINLEADED GASOLINE
736.52 BULK TINLEADED GASOLINE

1,014.45 BULK LINLEADED GASOLINE
747.54 OrLl5l40

Check Total: $ 3,491.64

II29I2O2I INTERGRATED DESIGNS BY $ 4,319.24 FIREBAUGH VFW HALL
Pa$ 1-0 of 17438.72 FIREBAUGH FIRE STATION

$

$

$

$

40748



Check

Number

40748

Check

Date

CITY OF FIREBAUGII ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Net

Name Amount

1,937.25

1,100.62

57.00

988.50

s41.25

247.00

t,949.20

2t9.24
9s.00

95.00

736.00

Description

GENERAL LEGAL MATTERS
GENERAL LITIGATION MATTER
MARIJUANA REGULATION
PERSONAL MATTERS
COMPLAINT FOR REVERSE VALVE
SUCCESSOR AGENCY
GENERAL LEGAL MATTERS
GENERAL LITIGATION MATTER
MARIruAN REGULATION
PERSONNEL MATTERS
COMPLAINT FOR REVERSE

O-RTNG/BRAKLEEN
CABLE CLAMP/TIE WIRE
NYLON ROPE

SUPER CLEAN
CURTIS KEYS
CAP SCREWSTAINLESS NUT
PIPE TEE/ELBOW

1129/2021 INTERGRATED DESIGNS BY $ 6,725.00 FIREBAUGH FIRE STATION

Check Total: $ 12,482.96

40749 1129/2021 KER WEST, INC. DBA $ I,799.00 SEALED PROPOSALS NOTICE

40750 1129/2021 LEAGUE OF CA CITIES SSJVT $ 5,i 11.00 MEMBERSHIP DUES FOR YEAR

40751 II29I2O2I LOZANO SMITH ATTORNEYS $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Check Total: $ 7,966.06

40752 1/2912021FERNANDO MARTINEZ $ 75.00 2O2I UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

40753 1129/2021 MID-VALLEYDISPOSAL 68.59 WATER TREATMENT PLANT
78.94 t325 0 STREET

Check Total: $ 147.53

40754 1129/2021 PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC $ 22,078.51 ALL DEPTS #7355932148-I

40755 1t29t2021 pITNEy BOWES #8000-9090- $ 520.99 POSTAGE MACHINE REFILL

40756 1129/2021 CLAUDIA SOLIS

$

$

40757 1129/2021 SPARKLETTS

40758 TI29I2O2I TECH MASTER MANAGEMEI. $

48O.OO FACEBOOK FOR DECEMBER 2O2O

360.00 FACEBOOK FOR NOVEMBER 2O2O

630.00 FACEBOOK FOR OCTOBER 2O2O

39O.OO FACEBOOK FOR SEPTEMBER 2O2O

1,860.00

I I1.87 CITY HALL/SEMOR CTR/PD/P

I5O.OO CITY HALL/PWCOMMTINITY CTR

$

$

$

$

Check Total: $

$

$ ts.72
$ 11.69

$ 7.13

$ 6.47

$ z.z+

$ 24.43

ea$ rr of 12 65.21

40759 1129/2021 THARP'S FARM SUPPLY



CITY OF FIREBAUGH ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WARRANTS JANUARY 1, 2021- JANUARY 31,2021

Check

Number

40759

Check

Date Name

I I29 /2021 THARP'S FARM SUPPLY

Net

Amount

30.02

31.11

36.s0
20.46

0.7r
34.66

3.24

9.18

4.70

10.41

3.76

0.60

0.97

68.84

t5.42
1i.90
3.24

Check Total: $ 4r9.61

Description

BLACK PRIMEPJWHITE PRIM ER

TAPE
CARBIDE BUR
FD.TAPE
FD-O RING
VAC TRUCK-FLUID
PD-KEYS

TRUCK#3s-GLOVES
SPRAY RIG
ELBOw/PVD/CONDUIT
FLAT WASHER/BOLTS
FD.BOLTS
FD-BOLTSA{UTS
TIES

DLINKLE PARK-TIE WIRE
FD-SWITCH
CHARGE

SHOP

COMMLINITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMI,INITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMUNITY CENTER
CITY HALL
SHOP

COMMTINITY CENTER
CITY HALL

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

40760 1/2912021 I.INIFIRSTCORPORATION $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

98.81

20.33

14.33

9r.99
20.33

t4.33
9t.99
20.33

14.33

9r.99
20.33

14.33

40761 II29I2O2I DATAPATH

Check Total: $ s13.42

$ 646.18 HP THIN CLIENT

Page 12 of L2



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM:

MEETINGDATE:

PREPARED BY:

RESOLUTION NO. 2I.06 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF TIIE CITY
OF FIREBAUGH AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR, AND RECEIPT OF', LOCAL
GOVERNMENT PLANNING SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS.

February 16,2021

Michael Sigala

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends City Council Approve Resolution 2l-06, Authorizing Submittal of a LEAP Grant
Application.

BACKGROUND:

The State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) recently released a Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA) for the LEAP Program to make funding available to all local governments in California
to streamline housing approvals and accelerate housing production. This program is part of the State's efforts
to ramp up housing production throughout the State. These funds are non-competitive and based on a

qualifying application. The funding available to the City of Firebaugh is $65,000.

DISCUSSION:

The City intends to utilize the LEAP funding to: 1) complete the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) ordinance

adoption and develop three architectural prototypes for use by the public, and2) conduct a feasibility study
and architectural prototype for mixed-use (commercial and residential) development options for Downtown
Firebaugh.

The application was submitted for a total of $65,000 and an approved resolution is needed.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no adverse fiscal impact to the City of Firebaugh.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution 2l-06, for LEAP Planning Grant Application Submittal



RESOLUTION NO. 2I-06

A RESOLUTION OF'THE CITY COI.]NCIL OF THE CITY OF FIREBAUGH AUTHORIZING
APPLICATION FOR, AND RECETPT Of," LOCAL GOVERNMENT PLANNING

SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FI]NDS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 50515 et. Seq, the Department of Housing and Community
Development (Department) is authorized to issue a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) as part of the Local
Government Planning Support Grants Program (hereinafter referred to by the Department as the Local Early
Action Planning Grants program or LEAP); and

WHEREAS, the "City Council" of the City of Firebaugh desires to submit a LEAP grant application package
("Application"), on the forms provided by the Department, for approval of grant funding for projects that assist
in the preparation and adoption of planning documents and process improvements that accelerate housing
production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth cycle of the regional housing need assessment; and

WHEREAS, the Department has issued a NOFA and Application on January 27, 2020 in the amount of
$l19,040,000 for assistance to all Califomia Jurisdictions;

Now, therefore, the "9j@!!" of the City of Firebaugh ("Applicant") resolves as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Manager of the City of Firebaugh is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and
submit to the Department the Application package;

SECTION 2. In connection with the LEAP grant, if the Application is approved by the Department, the City
Manager of the City of Firebaugh is authorized to submit the Application, enter into, execute, and deliver on
behalf of the Applicant, a State of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $65,000 and
any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence and secure the LEAP grant,
the Applicant's obligations related thereto, and all amendments thereto; and

SECTION 3. The Applicant shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the NOFA, and the
Standard Agreement provided by the Department after approval. The Application and any and all accompanying
documents are incorporated in full as part of the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information
provided, and timelines represented in the Application will be enforceable through the fully executed Standard
Agreement. Pursuant to the NOFA and in conjunction with the terms of the Standard Agreement, the Applicant
hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible uses and allowable expenditures in the manner presented and
specifically identified in the approved Application.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the City Council of the City of Firebaugh fteld on

February 16, 2021by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)
Council Member(s)

APPROVED: ATTEST:

Freddy Yaldez, Mayor Rita Lozano, Deputy City Clerk
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STAFF REPORT

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

Mayor Freddy Yaldez and Council Members

Pio Martin, Finance Director

February 16,2021

Fiscal Year 2019- 2020 Audit

RECOMMENDATION

Review and accept the FY 2019 - 2020 audited financial statements and the auditor's report on
compliance and internal control over financial accounting based on an audit of financial
statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

HISTORY:
Bryant L. Jolley, CPA has completed the FY 2019-2020 audit for the City of Firebaugh. Luis
Perez, Bryant Jolley office will be presenting at the February 16,2021 city council via phone
conference he will be available for answer any questions regarding the audit.

DISCUSSION:

FISCAL IMPACT:



Crrv or FTRnTAUGH

MmvncnMENT Rnponr

Fon rnn Ynnn ENnnn JuNn 30,2020



TABLE OF
CONTENTS

Required Communications

Page

l -3



BRYANT L. JOLLEY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bryant L..folley C.P.A.

Ryan P.Jolley C.P.A.
Darryl L. Smith C.P.A.

Luis A. Perez C.P.A.
Lan T. Kimoto

John P. Burt

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Firebaugh, California

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Firebaugh for the year
ended June 30,2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and, if applicable, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 4,2018.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to
our audit.

Sienificant Audit Findines

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City are described in Note I to the financial statements. No
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2020. We noted no transactions entered into by City during the year for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and

are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and

assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the City's financial statements were:

Management has determined the economic useful lives of fixed assets based on past history of
similar types of assets, future plans as to their use, and other factors that impact their economic
value to the City. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management in
computing depreciation expense and believe that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of
collectability primarily focused on past due accounts. We evaluated the key factors and

assumptions used to develop the allowance for doubtful accounts in determining that it is

reasonable in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

9o1 "N" STREET, SUITE 1o4 FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615



Management's estimate of the net pension liability and Net OPEB liability and related deferrals
is based on actuarial valuations which include significant assumptions regarding discount rate,
inflation, payroll growth, projected salary increases and investment rate of return. We evaluated
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the liability and related deferrals in determining
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Dfficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole.

D is a gr e em e nts w ith Managem ent

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

Man a gem ent Repr es ent at ions

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 9,2021.

Management C onsultations w ith Other Independent Accountant s

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to City of Firebaugh's financial statements or a

determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as City of Firebaugh's auditors.
However, these discussions occured in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

2



Other Matters

We applied cerlain limited procedures to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, Proportionate Share

of Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of Contributions which are required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSL With respect to this supplementary information,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
ofCity of Firebaugh and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

February 9,

3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Firebaugh, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Firebaugh, Califomia, (the City) as of and for
the year ended June 30,2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation offinancial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits containedin Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or effor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Firebaugh, California, as of June 30,2020, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

go1 "N" STREET, SIJITE 1o4 FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an

appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by
this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information, Schedule of Changes in City's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Contributions on pages 44 - 45, page 46, page 47, and page 48, respectively, be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Firebaugh's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor financial statements are
presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Require d by G overnment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 9, 2027, on our
consideration of the City of Firebaugh's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Firebaugh's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

February 9,



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30,2020

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable (net of allowance)

Due from other governments

Interest receivable

Notes and loans receivable
Internal balances

Capital assets, net of allowance

for depreciation

Total assets

DEF'ERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest payable

Deposits

Compensated absences

Long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Net other post employment benefits

Net pension liability
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Debt service

Public ways and facilities
Public safety programs

Low-income housing activities
Capital projects and improvements

Unrestricted

Total net position

4,417,093 17,829,820 22,246,913

14,312,178 25,352,872 39,665,050

1,046,974 225,405 1,272,379

$ 8,250,634 $

667,787

13,510

22,868
r,755,293
(815,007)

6,349,166 $

278,562

80,317

815,007

14,599,800

946,349

93,827

22,969
1,755,293

223,248

92,329
4,523
9,741

165,010

34,000

551,733

3,190,927

3,092,857

89,117

27,819
109,813

83,292

36,298

312,365
120,147

114,336

93,033
201,308

359,517

12,254,800
4,569,422

3,496,407

325,5t7
11,703,067

1,378,595

403 550

7,364,267 14,157,068 21,521,335

5 I 8,341 194,266 712,607

3,831,360 6,648,961 10,480,321

5,428
1,549,589

188,825

341,333
1,377,117

242,892

67,427 72,855
1,549,589

1 88,825

341,333
l,3l7,ll7
4,753,4474, 510,555

See accompanying notes.

$ 7,476,544 $ 11,226,943 $ 18,703,487

3



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Functions/Prosrams

Primary Government

Govemmental activities

General goverffnent

Public ways and facilities
Public protection

Culture and recreation

Community development

Debt Service

Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities

Sewer

Water

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

General Revenue

Property taxes

Sales and use taxes

Franchise taxes

Grants and contributions - unrestricted

Interest and investment eamings

Miscellaneous

Gain on sale of assets

Total general revenue

Change in Net Position

Net Position

Beginning ofyear

End ofyear

Net Revenue/(Expense) and
Chanses in Net Position

fxnense
Charges for

Services

Capital
Grants and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities

Program Revenue

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

$ 387,824 $

t,262,779

3,086,968

325,30s

716,807

59,219 $

479,483

190,128

15,659

402,696

22,327 S

946,ttt
234,562

1.203.000

t.203.272

144,478

369,3'76

648,513

(306,278) $
307,293

(2,662,278)

(309,646)

55,265

(21.769\

(2.937.413\

(2.93',1.413'l

446,229

2,505,086

128,494

1,392

80,516

266,945

6,050

$

Business-Type

Activities Total

$ (306,278)

307,293
(2,662,278)

(309,646)

55,265

Ql.769)
(2.937.413\

341,280 341,280
(223,643) (223,643)

117.637 tt7.63'.7

117.637 Q.819.776\

2t 769

5.801.452

1,360,423

1,961,766

3.322.189

9.r23.641

1.147.185

1,566,772

1.738.123

3.304.895

4.452.080

5 I 3.854

272 134,6s9

134.659272

80,014

2,177

446,229

2,505,086

128,494

1,392

160,530

269,122

6-050

3.434.712 82.1 9 1 3.5 16.903

497,299 199,828 697,127

6.9'19.245 11.027.t15 18.006.360

See accompanying notes

$ 7.476.544 S 11.226.943 $ 18.703.487
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 3O,2O2O

General
Community
Develooment Housins

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Accounts rec€ivable
Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Interest receivable
Notes and loans receivable

Total assets

$

s

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expense $

Accrued salaries and benefits
Interest payable

Due to other funds
Advances fiom other fiurds
Deposits

Total liabilities

Deferred infl ows of resources

Unavailable revenues

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Fund Balance
Restricted

Debt service
Public ways and facilities
Public safety progrzrms

Low-income housing activities
Capital projects and improvements

Unassigned
Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred infl ows of resources,

and fund balance

5,763,795 $

380,914
1,437

279,550

6.425.696 S

151,444 $

t5s,761
4,523

815,007
9.741

r.t36,476

5,428

93r,897
4.35 1.895

5 )RS ))O

128,378 $

I 57,884
12,073

3 18,465 S

22,868
1,755,293

2.096.626 $

$

1.755.293

1.755.293

341,333

341 333

2,039,996 $

128,989

2.168.98s $

17,996 S

27,355

45-351

1,549,589
188,825

385,220

), 1),7 (\74

8,250,634
667,787

13,5 l0
279,550
22,868

1.755_293

10.989.642

223,248
183,116

4,523
279,550
8l 5,007

9.741
1.515.185

1.755.293

r.755.293

298^335 $

53,808 $

279,550

333,358

(35,023)
tr? < nt?\

5,428
1,549,589

l 88,825
341,333

I,3t7 ,tt7
4.316.872
'1.719.154

5See accompanying notes.

$ 6.425.696 $ 298.335 $ 2.096.626 $ 2.168,985 $ 10.989.642



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

RECONCILIATION OF'TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30,2020

Total governmental fund balance $ 7,719,764

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement

of Net Position are different because:

Notes receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures

and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds 1,755,293

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 4,417,093

Defened outflows of resources related to net pension liability and post-

retirement health benefits, represent a consumption of net position or
fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not be

recognized as an outflow ofresources (expenses) until that time 1,046,974

Post-retirement health benefits are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (3,190,827)

Governmental long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds

Notes and capital lease payable (585,732)

Net pension liability applicable to govemmental activities are not due

and payable in the current period and accordingly is not reported in
the governmental funds (3,092,857)

Deferred inflows of resources related to net pension liability, represent an

acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources
(revenue) until that time (518,341)

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds (74,223)

Net position of governmental activities $ 7,476,544

See accompanying notes 6



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AI\D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

General
Community
Development Housins

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

3,079,809
514,014

1,716,854
611,727

21,444
I 5 1,000

80,516
76R 351

6,443.715

305,382
r,200,360
2,304,273

295,366
704,849

761,870

126,338
21,769

s.720_207

723,508

6,050
128,378

(128,378)

6.050

729,558

6.989.606

Revenue

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovemmental
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Loan repayments

Invesfrnent income

Other
Total revenue

Expenditures
Current

General governrnent

Public ways and facilities
Public protection

Culture and recreation

Community development

Capital outlay
Debt Service

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Revenue over/(under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Sale ofassets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources(uses)

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance
Beginning ofyear
End ofyear

$ 3,044,093 $

461,790
172,766

611,727

21,444

29,413
?6R ?l?

4.609.546

305,382

581,081

2,180,365
29t,2n
499,483

378,760

126,338
2t 769

4.384.389

225,t57

6,050

fi 28-378)
022.328\

102,829

5. I 86.39 I

$

36s,626

36s.626

205,366

305,203

5 10,569

(144,943)

128,378

128,378

(r6,565)

0 8.458)

$

3,750

151,000

41,588

196,338

196,338

I 96,338

t44,995

35,716 $

52,224
1,r74,712

9,5 l5
?e

1.272.205

619,279

123,908
4,155

'17,90'7

825.249

446,956

446,956

r,676,678

7See accompanying notes

$ 5.289.220 $ (35.023) $ 341,333 $ 2-123-634 $ 7.719.164



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF'REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 729,558

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Statement of
Activities, but they does not require the use of current financial
resources, therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as

expenditures in the Govemmental Funds (403,955)

Govemmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are capitalized

as an asset and depreciated over the period ofservice 761,870

Post-retirement benefit costs in the Statement of Activities does not
require the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported as expenditures in the Govemmental Funds (273,758)

Repayment of long-term notes receivable is revenue in governmental

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term assets in the statement

of net position (151,000)

Pension expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

as expenditures in the Govemmental Funds (217,531)

Compensated absence costs in the Statement of Activities does not
require the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are

not reported as expenditures in the Governmental Funds (74,223)

Repayment of loans and capital leases principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities
in the statement of net assets 126,338

Change in net position of govemmental activities $ 497,299

See accompanying notes 8



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION _ PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30,2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

Total
Proprietary

Funds

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounts and interest receivable

Due from govemment

Total current assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest
Deposits

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bonds payable

Net other pension benefits

Net pension liability
Total noncunent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

232,926 438,930 671

$ 3,143,088

157,441

77,108

3,377,637

3,206,078 $

l2l,l2l
3,209

6,349,166
278,562

80,317

$

3,330,408 6,708,045

Non-current assets

Advances to other funds
Property, plant and equipment,

net of allowance for depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

735,007 80,000 815,007

6,451,845 11,377,975 17,829,820

7,186,852 11,457 ,97 5 18,644,827

Total assets 10,564,489 14,788,383 25,352,872

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES r12,479 112,986 225,405

35,040

29,490

61,464

106,932

54,077

34,627

48,349

83,292
218,585

89,777

64,717

109,813

83,292
325,517

856

4,680,312

699,579

198.721

7,022,755
679,016

204.829

11,703,067

1,378,595

403 550

5,579,612 7,906,600 13,485,212

5,811,538 8,345,530 14,157,068

96,669 97,597 194,266

1,989,585

25,849
2,753,267

4,659,376
41,579

1,757,288

6,648,961
67,427

4,510,555

See aceompanying notes.

s 4,768,701 $ 6,458,242 $ 11,226,943

9



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FTINDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Business-Tvpe Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total
Proprietary

FundsSewer Water
Operating Revenue

Charges for services

Total operating income

Operating Expense
Personnel

Utilities
Supplies and materials
Maintenance and operations
Contractual services

Depreciation

Other expenses

Total operating expense

Operating income/(loss)

Nonoperating Revenue/(Expense)
Investment income
Other revenue

Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenue/(expense)

before capital contributions

Capital Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position
Beginning of year

End ofyear

$ 1,566,772 $ 1,739,123 $ 3,304,895

1,566,772 1,738,123 3,304,895

585,207

124,259

29,550
41,232

110,085

229,928
77,374

1,197,635

575,079

342,137

61,269
122,042

75,57 5

481,274

48,1 55

1,705,531

32,592

1,160,286
466,396

90,819

163,274

185,660

711,202
125 529

2,903,166

369,137

33,204
871

(162,788)

46,810
1,306

(256,235)

401 729

80,014

2,177
(419,023)

(128,713) (208,1l9) (336,832)

134,931 134,931

375,355 (175,527) 199,828

4,393,346 6,633,769 ll 027 ll5
$ 4,769,701 $ 6,459,242 $ 11,226,943

See accompanying notes 10



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

Total
Proprietary

Funds

Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users

Payment to suppliers ofgoods and services

Payment to employees

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Non-capital Financial Activities
Payments from other governments

Payments received from (paid to) other funds

Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital fi nancing activities

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities

Investing Activities
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash

Beginning of year

End ofyear

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Defened Outflows of Resources

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable

and Accrued Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences

Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB liability
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

(1,e06,137) (3,22s,827)
(162,444) (232,444)
(222,050) (363,823)

,531,463) (2,290,631) (3,822,094)

$ 1,563,233 $

(388,922)
(s20,s87)

1,765,465 $

(676,254)
(s1s,762)

3,328,698
(r,065, r 76)
(l,036,349)

653,724 573,449 1,227,173

1s7,901

60,4s8
I,306

97,247

159,207

157 705

2 r8,359 98,s53 316,912

(1,31e,690)
(70,000)

(r4t,773)

(1

33,204 46,810 80,014

33,204 46,810 80,014

(626,176) (1,57r,819) (2,r97,99s)

3,769,264 4,777,897 8,s47,l6l

$ 3,143,088 $ 3,206,078 $ 6,349,166

$ 369,137 $ 32,592$ 401,729

229,928
(3,s3e)

(15,742)

(6,422)

32

58,397

88,805
(66,872)

481,274

26,189
(8,5se)

(27,076)
I,153
(383)

50,992
86,194

(68,927)

711,202
22,6s0

(24,301)

(33,4e8)

I,153
(3sl)

109,389

174,999
(13s,799)

See accompanying notes.

$ 653,724 $ 573,4495 1,227,173

II



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF F'IDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND - SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30,2020

Assets

Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable

Long-term debt
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Position

Held in trust for other governments

$ 812,232

812,232

4,545
))')'))

240,468
5,147,171

5 4t4,406

$ (4,602,174)

See accompanying notes. 12



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

STATEMENT OF'CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND - SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30,2020

Additions
Property taxes

Investment eamings

Total additions

Deductions
Program expenses

Interest and fiscal agency expenses

Totaldeductions

Change In Net Position

Net Position
Beginning of year

End ofyear

$ 432,467

J 895

436,362

301,666
272,376

574,042

( 137,680)

(4,464,494)

$ (4,602,174)

See accompanying notes. t3



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Firebaugh (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

These financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are,

in substance, part of the government's operations and data from these units is combined with data of the
primary government. Each blended component unit has a June 30 fiscal year end. There are no discretely
presented component units included in these financial statements. The following sections further describe
the significant accounting policies of the City.

Reporting Entity

The City of Firebaugh, State of California (the "City"), was incorporated in 1914. The City operates under
a Council-Manager form of govemment. The City's major operations include public safety; highways and
streets; water and sewer; parks and recreation; building inspection; public improvements; planning and
zoning, and general administrative services.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The Government-Wide Financial Statements (the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position) report information of all of
the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part,
eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City and between the City and its
component unit. Govemmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter-govemmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely significantly on fees charged to
external parties.

The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position presents a comparison between direct expenses

and program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of
the City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1)

charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Net position is restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed by
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Intemally imposed designations of resources are not
presented as restricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are

needed.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide
information about the City's funds, including fiduciary funds and the blended component unit. Separate

statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis
of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate

column. All remaining governmental funds are separately aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
eamings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City repofts the following major governmental funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all financial
resources except those required legally, or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund. Generally, the General Fund is used to account for those traditional govemmental services of the
City, such as police and fire protection, planning and general administrative services.

Community Development Fund - The Community Development Fund was established to account for the
monies received from various sources which are to be used for the design and construction of various
projects.

Housing Fund - The Housing Fund is used to account for grant revenues and expenditures related to
housing assistance loans for low income individuals (HOME grants) and businesses (Low Moderate
Housing Assets).

The City reports the following additional fund types

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the City as

trustee for the Successor Agency.

Basis of Accounting

The Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and

donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions take place.

Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible
requirements have been satisfied.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Governmental Funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. Property and sales taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are

accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both
measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset

acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds ofgeneral long-term debt and
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a Proprietary Fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating.

Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and Investments - Cash and investments represent the City's cash bank accounts including but not
limited to certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting purposes
in the Statement of Cash Flows. Additionally, investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased are included as cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings as a

result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based on month end cash balances in each

fund.

Investments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code
such as, United States Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government,
registered state warrants, and other investments. Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund. Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost.

Accounts Receivable - Billed but unpaid services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are

recorded as accounts receivable. The Proprietary Funds include a year-end accrual for services through
June 30, 2020, which have not yet been billed.

Fresno County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all
taxingjurisdictions. Secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on January I ofthe preceding fiscal
year. Secured property taxes are due in two installments, on November I and March 1, and become a lien
on those dates. They become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Collection of
delinquent accounts is the responsibility of the County, which retains all penalties collected. Property
taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized when they become
measurable and available to finance current liabilities. The City considers property taxes as available if
they are collected within 60 days after year end. Property tax on the unsecured roll are due on July 1 and
become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. However, unsecured property taxes are not susceptible to year
end accrual.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The City is permitted by Article XIIIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to
levy a maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.

Interfund Receivables/Payables - Items classified as interfund receivable/payable represent short-term
lending/bonowing transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an
advance to or from another fund.

Advances To/From Other Funds - This classification represents non-current portions of any long-term
lending/bonowing transactions between funds. This amount will be equally offset by a reserve of fund
balance which indicates that it does not represent available financial resources and therefore, is not
available for appropriation. The current portion of any interfund long-term loan (advance) is included as

an interfund receivable/payable.

Capital Assets - Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds and as assets in the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the extent the City's
capitalization threshold are met.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable govemmental or business-type activities
columns in the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as

assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value ofthe assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary govemment, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Depreciable asset

Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Utility system

Infrastructure

Years

10-40

l0-40
3-20
5-50

1 5-50
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences - It is the City's policy to permit all employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and compensatory time benefits. Those employees on shift work schedules may also accumulate
hours for holiday time benefits.

Vested or accumulated vacation, holiday and any compensation time that is expected to be paid with
expendable available financial resources is reported as expenditure in the fund financial statements of the
Governmental Fund that will pay for it. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources are reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Vested leave ofProprietary Funds are recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue.

Sick leave can be accumulated, but vesting is limited and will not be paid upon termination. However, in
past years unused sick leave could be used to pay post-employment health insurance. One retiree has

unused benefits of $84,776 alyear end and this amount is reported as a compensated absence liability. For
this reason, the City does not accrue any costs relating to sick leave.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue is that for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City typically records uneamed revenue related
to uncollected outstanding, performing loans and intergovemmental revenues (primary grants and
subventions) received but not earned (qualiffing expenditures not yet incuned).

Long-Term Obligations - In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and Proprietary Fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable govemmental activities, business-type activities, or Proprietary Fund Type Statement of Net
Position. Debt principal payments of both government and business-type activities are reported as

decreases in the balance of the liability on the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs

are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term ofthe related debt.

In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of Governmental Funds are recognized
as expenditures when paid. Governmental Fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as

bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities - GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of
account groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the
Govemmental Activities column in the Govemment-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Pension Plan - All full-time City employees are members of the State of California Public Employees'
Retirement System. The City's policy is to fund all pension costs accrued; such costs to be funded are

determined annually as of July 1 by the System's actuary. See note 9 for further discussion.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Bond Discount and Issuance Costs - For governmental funds, bond discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing sources net ofthe
applicable discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld form the actual net proceeds received, are

reported as debt service expenditures. For business-type funds, bond discounts, are deferred and amortized
over the life, ofthe bonds. Bonds payable are reported net ofapplicable bond discounts. Issuance costs are

expensed.

Net Position/Fund Balance - The government-wide and business-fype activities fund financial statements
utilize a net position presentation. Net position are categorized as net investment in capital assets,

restricted and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure,
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position - This category presents external restrictions on net position imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

Fund Balance - In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is made up of the following
components:

Nonspendable fund balance typically includes inventories, prepaid items, and other items that must
be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements, such as endowments.

Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
through enabling legislations.

Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council has the authority to
establish, modiff, or rescind a fund balance commitment.

Assigned fund balance are amounts designated by the City Council for specific purposes and do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification that includes all spendable amounts in the
General Fund not contained in other classifications.

o

a

a

o
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the City's policy is to apply restricted first. When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are

available, the City's policy is to apply committed fund balance first, then assigned fund balance, and
finally unassigned fund balance.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Califomia law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, certificates of deposit or time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

In accordance with applicable sections of the Califomia Govemment Code and the Firebaugh Municipal
Code, the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets
are adopted for the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds.
Budget plans are adopted for Proprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council
during June of each year for review. The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or
change appropriations within the revenues and reserves estimated as available. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Supplementary appropriations which alter the
total expenditures of any fund, or expenditures in excess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be

approved by the City Council.

A11 annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end to the extent they have not been expended or
encumbered.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 3 - Cash and Investments

The City pools all of its cash and investments except those funds required to be held by outside fiscal
agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash is allocated to
the various funds on average cash balances. Interest income from cash investments held with fiscal
agents is credited directly to the related funds.

Cash and investments as of June 30,2020 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as

follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Investments

Fiduciary Funds:

Cash and Investments

Total Cash and Investments

Cash on hand

Deposits with Financial Institutions
Cash with FiscalAgent

Local Agency Investment Fund

Total Cash and Investments

$ 14,599,800

812,232

$ 15,412,032

Cash and investments as of June 30,2020 consist of the following:

$ 431

1r,931,781
915,964

2,563,856

$ 15,412,032

Fair Value Measurements

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level l) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
as follows:

Level l: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that a govemment can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs - other than quoted prices included within
Level I - that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

21



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2020

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

June30,2020
Balance

Investments by fair value level:

Equity Securities:
LAIF

Total Equity Securities

$ $ 2,563,856 $ $ 2,563,856

2,563,856 2,563,856

11,932,212
915,964

12,848,176

$ 15,412,032

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The City's
investment policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the City's exposure to
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of
debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy.

Cash and cash equivalents carried at cost:
Bank Deposits and Cash on Hand
Cash with Fiscal Agent

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents carried at cost

Total Cash and Investments

Authorized lnvestment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit

Quality

Maximum
Percentage

Allowed

U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Banker's Acceptances
CommercialPaper
Money Market Mutual Funds

Investment Contracts
Certificates of Deposits
Repurchase Agreements
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Municipal Bonds

None

None
I year

None
None
None
I year

30 days

N/A
None

None
AAA
None
A-1
A

None

A-1
None
None
None

None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None

None
None
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond
trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate
risk, credit risk, and concentration ofcredit risk.

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Percentage

of Portfolio

Maximum
Percentage

of Portfolio

Local Agency Bonds

U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Banker's Acceptances

Commercial Paper

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium-Term Notes
Mutual Funds

Money Market Mutual Funds

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities

None

None
None
40%
2s%
30%
None

20% ofbase value

30%
20%
20%
20%

1 year

I year

1 year

180 days

270 days

I year

90 days

92 days

5 years

N/A
N/A

5 years

None

A
None

None
None
None
None
None

A
A
A

AA

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. As of June 30,2020 the City had the following investments.

June 30, 2020
Balance Maturity Date

Investment Type
Equity Securities:

LAIF

Total Equity Securities

$ 2,563,856 N/A

$ 2,563,856
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the Califomia
Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end
for each investment type.

June 30, 2020

Balance

Minimum Legal
Rating

Rating of Year

End
Investment Type

$ 2,563,856 N/A Not Rated

$ 2,563,856

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested
issuer beyond that stipulated by the Califomia Govemment Code. There are no investments
issuer that represent 5o/o or more of the total City investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City's
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Govemment Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local govemmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived
by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
the secured public deposits.

Equity Securities:
LAIF

Total Equity Securities

ln any one
in any one
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued)

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another pafty. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy
do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment
in securities through the use of mutual funds or govemment investment pools (such as LAIF).

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Govemment Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Note 4 - Notes Receivable

Revolving Loan Program - Long-term loans receivable of 51,405,293 represent monies loaned to
homebuyers in connection with a downpayment assistance programs. The loans are secured by real
property with repayment due upon the sale of real property or starting at the end of the 30 year deferral
period. At the time of sale, the seller pays the loan balance in full plus interest, ranging from 0% Io 4o/o.

For the homebuyer loan program, starting at the end of the 30 year deferral period, the borrower is
required to repay the loan over the following l5 years.

Firebaugh San Joaquin Vista Associates - During fiscal year 2000, the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Firebaugh loaned Firebaugh San Joaquin Vista Associates $200,000 as a subsidy in connection
with a low income apartment. The note carries an interest tate of 3%o and matures during 2055. The terms
of the agreement specify that payments of the outstanding principal and accrued interest shall be paid
annually in the amount equal to 30%o of available project revenues. Payments made shall be credited first
against accrued interest and then against outstanding principal. There have been no required payments to
date on this note.

San Joaquin Development LLC - During fiscal year 2009, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Firebaugh loaned San Joaquin DevelopmentLLC $150,000 in connection with the construction of low-
income condominiums. The note is non-interest bearing and is repayable upon sale of each unit at the rate
of $7,134 per unit. There have been no repayments on principal to date on this note.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note5-CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Balance
July 1,2019 Additions

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$ 372,922 $

606,438
372,922 606,438

Retirements
Balance

June 30, 2020

$ $ 372,922
606,438
979,360

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Govemmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Tyne Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less : accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

6,604,477 155,432

2,468,657
1,570,156
2,565,664

6,200
28,619

120,613

2,474,957
1,598,775
2,696,277
6,759,909

(785,068)
(169,683)

(1,963,470)

(71,087)
(39,432)

(293,436)

(856, I 55)

(209,1 l5)
(2,256,906)

(2.91 8,221) (403,955) (3,322,176)

3,686,256 (248,523) 3,437,733

$ 4,059,178 $ 357,915 $ $ 4,417,093

$ 203,705 $ $ $ 203,705
3,225,9273,225,927

203 705 3,225,827 3,429,532

24,284,841
1,173,559

25,458,400

24,284,941
173 559

25,458,400

(10,346,910) (711,202) (1 1,058,1 l2)

15,1 I I ,490 (711,202) 14,400,288

$ 17,829,820$ 15,315,195 $ 2,514,625 $
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation and amortization expense were charged to the following functions in the Statement of
Activities:

Governmental Functions:
General Govemment
Public Safety

Public Works
Parks and Community Services

Business-Type Functions:
Sewer

Water

Governmental Activitv Lons Term Debt

Mortgage Note Payable

2019 Solar Project Equipment Lease

2019 Fire Truck Lease

Net other post employment benefits

Net pension liability

Total Governmental Activity Debt

Business-Tvne Activitv Lons Term Debt
Bonds payable:

2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bond
2016 Wastewater Refunding Bond
2016 Water Refunding Bond
2019 Water Solar Project Equipment Lease

2019 Wastewater Solar Project Equipment Lease

Net other post employment benefits

Net pension liability

Total Business-Type Activity Debt

Balance
Additions Retirements June30,2020

$ 100,000 $ $ 100,000 $

337,485
274,s86 - 26,338

2,785,783 405,044

3,285,152 192,295

$ 6,783,006 $ 40s,044 $ 318,633 s 6,869,417

$ 63,222

127,589

189,288
23 8s6

$

$

403 955

229,928
481,274

$ 7ll,2o2

Note 6 - Long-term Liabilities

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The City's debt transactions are summarized below and
discussed in detail thereafter:

Balance
July l,2019

337,485
248,248

3,190,827

3,092,857

Current
Portion

$

6,705
27,295

$ 34,000

$ 1,168,513 $ S 82,444 $

3,250,000 - 70,000

3,650,000 - 80,000

2,585,271

1,607,244

t,203,596 174,999

s39,349 135,799

1,086,069 $

3,1 80,000

3,s70,000

2,585,271

1,607,244

1,378,595

403,550

$ 325,517

82,222

75,000

85,000

51,363

31,932

$ 14,003,973 $ 174,999 s 368,243 $ 13,810,729
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Note 6 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Long-term debt payable at June 30,2020 was comprised of the following individual issues

Governmental Activity Long Term Debt

Mortgage Note Payable - In November 2018, the City entered into an agreement with a private citizen
(seller) to purchase real estate property at 1074 P Street, Firebaugh, California, for a total amount of
$203,866, the City made an initial payment of $103,866 at the close of escrow and paid the seller the
remaining $100,000 in November 2019.

2019 Solar Project Equipment Lease - In May 2019, The City entered into a capital lease arrangement
to finance the acquisition of certain energy efficient equipment and improvements for the City. The lease
obligation is accounted for as a capital lease where the related equipment and improvements to be acquired
will become property of the City when all terms of the lease agreement are met. The stated interest under
termsoftheagreementvariesbetween2.05%and4.00%owithanaveragerateof3.6%. Presentvalueof
the remaining payments as of June 30,2020 is $4,530,000, the City has determined future payments are to
be made from the General Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, and Sewer Enterprise Fund in the amounts of
$337,485, $2,585,271 and $1,607,244, respectively. Semiannual debt service payments under the
agreement start on February 1,2020 and end on August 1,2029, ranging from $72,855 to $170,379. As of
June 30, 2020, the City had accumulated total capital expenditures of $3,339,998 in Construction In
Progress.

2019 Fire Truck Lease - In May 2018, The City entered into a capital lease arrangement to finance the
acquisition of a Fire Truck. The lease obligation is accounted for as a capital lease where the related
equipment acquired will become property of the City when all terms of the lease agreement are met. The
stated interest rate under terms of the agreement is3.6Yo, present value of minimum lease payments is

$300,000. Annual debt service payments of $36,317 start on May 31,2019 and conclude on May 31,
2028.

Business-Type Activity Long Term Debt

2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bond - In November 2013, the City issued revenue bonds in the
amount of $1,512,415. The funds were used for the purpose of refinancing the 2005 Water Revenue Bond.
Principal and interest is payable semi-annually on December 1 and June I each year, with an interest rate
of 3.85%.
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Note 6 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

2016 Water Refunding Bonds - ln 2016 the City issued $3,945,000 of Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds. The proceeds of the issue were used to refinance the 2007 USDA Water Certificate of
Participation. Interest on the Bond is payable semi-annually on November I and June 1 each year, with
stated interest rates ranging from 2.00%o to 4.00Yo per annum for an average coupon rate of 3.38%.
Principal is paid annually on June l. Pursuant to the provisions of the Bond agreement, the City has

established a Rate Stabilization Fund and made an initial deposit of $500,000 in fiscal year 2016-17,
$250,000 was used to cover debt ratio in fiscal year 2017 -18, and during fiscal year 201 8- I 9 $ I 1 5,000 was
used to cover debt ratio, leaving a current ending balance of $135,000 at June 30,2020. Debt service is

secured by a pledge of net revenues of the City's Water System. The City covenants that it shall prescribe,
revise and collect such charges for the services and facilites of the water system which shall produce
revenues sufficient in each fiscal year to provide gross revenues which are sufficient to pay all water
operation and maintenance costs and all bond installment payments and produce net water revenues equal
to at least 1.25 times debt service coming due and payable during such fiscal year. The City is in
compliance with those covenants as of June 30,2020. Cash basis debt service paid during the fiscal year
ended June 30,2020 totaled 5328,826. Total water system net revenues calculated in accordance with the
covenants were $561,975 and net revenue available for debt service was 1.71 times debt service at June

30,2020.

2016 Wastewater Refunding Bonds - In 2016 the City issued $3,415,000 of Wastewater Revenue
Refunding Bonds. The proceeds of the issue were used for refinance of the 2008 USDA Sewer Loan
Payable. Interest on the Bond is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 each year, with
stated interest rates ranging from 2.00%o to 4.00Yo per annum for an average coupon rate of 3.38%.
Principal is paid annually on August 15. The City covenants that it shall prescribe, revise and collect such
charges for the services and facilites ofthe sewer system which shall produce revenues sufficient in each
fiscal year to provide gross revenues which are sufficient to pay all sewer operation and maintenance costs

and all bond installment payments and produce net sewer revenues equal to at least L25 times debt service
coming due and payable during such fiscal year. The City is in compliance with those covenants as of
June30,2020. CashbasisdebtservicepaidduringthefiscalyearendedJune30,2020totaled$.177,163.
Total sewer system net revenues calculated in accordance with the covenants were $632,135 and net
revenue available for debt service was 3.57 times debt service at June 30,2020.

2019 Water Solar Project Equipment Lease - See 2019 Solar Project Equipment Lease under
Governmental Activity Long Term Debt for general terms of the lease agreement. The portion of
the total lease liability allocated to the Water Enterprise Fund is $2,585,271.

2019 Wastewater Solar Project Equipment Lease - See 2019 Solar Project Equipment Lease
under Governmental Activity Long Term Debt for general terms of the lease agreement. The
portion of the total lease liability allocated to the Wastewater Enterprise Fund is $1,607,244.
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Note 6 - Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

The annual requirement to amortize the principal and interest on all long-term debt at June 30, 2020 are as

follows:

Governmental Activities Bu Activities
Principal Interest Principal InterestYears ending June 30,

2021
2022

2023
2024

2025
2026-2030
2031-2035

2036-2040
2041-2045

2046-2050

$ 34,000 $

42,442
43,470

45,280
46,394

180,457

93,498
100,202

$ 325,517

427,731
432,304
441,123

455,579

2,465,734
2,430,799
2,579,797
1,585,000

885,000

$ 12,028,584

$ 401,002

390,383

378,439
366,320
353,953

1,561,517

1,139,605

684,805

3 1 1,916

47,075

$ 5,635,016

19,877

18,675

17,356
15,997

14,588

51,535

30,627

10,303

$ 585,733 $ 178,958

Note 7 - Interfund Balances

Interfund balances as of June 30,2020 consist of the following:

All balances reported as "due to/due from" are short-term loans to cover temporary fund cash shortages as

of June 30, 2020, and were repaid early in fiscal y ear 2021 .

Due From Due To

Major Funds:

General Fund
Community Development

$ 279,550 $

279,550

q______229J8 $ 279,550

Balances reported as "advance to/advance from" were for capital project expenditures and have scheduled
repayments in future years.

Advances From Advances To

Major Funds:

General Fund
Enterprise Funds

Sewer

Water

$ 815,007$

735,007
80,000

$_______qupqz $ 815,007
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Note 8 - Deficit Fund Balance

Fund Balance Deficits - The Community Development Fund has a deficit fund balance as of June 30,
2020 of$35,023. The deficit is expected to be relieved from future revenues or transfers from other funds.

Note9-PensionPlan

Plan Description - The City contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS),
an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state

statute and city ordinance. Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive
Office - 400 P Street - Sacramento, CA 95814.

Funding Policy - Participants are required to contribute eight percent (nine percent for safety employees)
of their annual covered salary. The City contributes the employees required share for administrative
and public works employees and 5Yo and 4o/o of the police and dispatchers required share, respectively.
The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 6.985 - 11.432
percent for non-safety employees and 13.034 - 20.073 percent for safety employees of annual covered
payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by PERS.

Benefits provided - CalPERs provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are

eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following:
the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The
cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees' Retirement
Law.

31



CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note 9 - Pension Plan (continued)

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30,2020, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Safety

Hire Date

Benefit Formula

Benefit Vesting Schedule

Benefit Payments

Retirement Age
Monthly Benefits, as ao/o of Eligible Compensation
Required Employee Contribution Rates

Required Employer Contribution Rates

Hire Date

Benefit Formula

Benefit Vesting Schedule

Benefit Payments

Retirement Age
Monthly Benefits, as a%o of Eligible Compensation

Required Employee Contribution Rates

Required Employer Contribution Rates

Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee

Prior to
January 1,2013

2.5o/o at 55;
maximum 20%

COLA
5 years service

monthly for life
55

2.50%
8.00%

11.432%

PEPRA
Miscellaneous

Prior to
January 1,2013

3.0o/o aI 55;
maximum2Yo

COLA
5 years service

monthly for life
55

3.00%
9.00%

20.073%

PEPRA Safety
C)n or After

January 1,2013
On or After

January 1,2013
2.0o/o at 62;

maximum 2olo

COLA
5 years service
monthly for life

62

2.00%

6.25%

6.985%

2.7%o at 571'

maximum2o/o

COLA
5 years service

monthly for life
57

2.70%

11.50%

13.034%

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on July I following the notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, lhe contributions recognized as part of the pension expense is as

follows:

$ 519,336

$ 173,120
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Note 9 - Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30,2020, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension
liability as follows:

Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous
Safety

Total

$

Proportion - June 30,20i9
Proportion - June 30, 2020

Change - Increase/(Decrease)

Pension contributions subsequent to

measurement date

Change in employer's proportion
Differences between employer's contributions and
proportionate share of contributions
Differences between expected and actual

experience

Changes of assumptions

Differences between projected and actual

investment earnings

Total

1,337,483

2,159,924

3,496,407

The City's net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability of each Plan is measured as of June 30,2079, and the total pension liability for each Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,2018
rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update procedures. The City's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension
plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The
City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2019 and 2020 was as

follows:
Miscellaneous Safety

$

Forthe year ended June 30, 2020,the City recognized pension expense of $731,374. AIJune 30,2020,Ihe
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the
following sources:

0.04743%
0.03340%

-0.01403%

Deferred Outflows

ofResources

0.03472%
0.03458%

-0.00014%

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

$ 519,336

44,236

8,991

233,852
152,267

(359,919)

(30,673)

(7,197)
(39,878)

(s3,083)

$

$_______2rq$2 $ (490,750)
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Note 9 - Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflowsilnflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

$519,336 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended

June 30

$ 152,809

( 146,551)

(68,166)

10,504

$ (5 1,404)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The collective total pension liability for the June 30,2019
measurement period was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, with update procedures

used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30,2019. The collective total pension liability was
based on the following assumptions:

202t
2022

2023
2024

Valuation Date

Measurement Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate

Inflation
Payroll Growth
Salary Increases

Mortality Rate Table

Post Retirement Benefit Increase

June 30,2018

June 30,2019
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method in
accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68

7.15%
2.50%
3.00%

Varies by Entry Age and Service

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership I

Date for all Funds

Contract COLA up to 2.5% until
Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power

applies

rThe mortality table used was developed based on Ca[PERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years ofmortality improvements using Society ofActuaries
Scale 90% ofscale MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CaIPERS demographic data

lrom I 997 to 201 5) that can be found on the CaIPERS website.
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Note 9 - Pension Plan (continued)

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation was based on the results of an

December 2017 experience study report (based on CaIPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015),

including updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study can be obtained

at CaIPERS' website.

Change of assumptions - None.

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.l1Yo. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected rate of returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of retum, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market retum expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical retums
of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term
(first l0 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each

fund. The expected rate of retum was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected retum that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term retums. The expected rate of retum was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The long-term expected real rates of retum by asset class can be found in CaIPERS' Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report forthe fiscal year ended June 30,2019.
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Note 9 - Pension Plan (continued)

The table below reflects long-term expected real rates of retum by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
The geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Asset Class

New Strategic
Allocation

Real Return

Years l-10
Real Return 3

Years I l+
2

Global Equity
Fixed Income
Inflation Assets

Private Equity
Real Estate

Infrastructure and Forestland

Liquidity
Total

50%
28%
0%
8%

13%
0%
t%

4.80%
1.00%

0.77%
6.30%
3.75%
0.00%
0.00%

I o% Increase

(8.1s%)

5.98%
2.62%
1.81%
7.23Yr

4.93%
0.00%
-0.92%

100%
rln the System's CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities
2An expected inflation of 2.0o/o used for this period
3 An expected inflation of 2.92o/o used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan, calculating
using the discount rate of each Plan, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.1 5Yr) or l-
percentage point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

1o% Decrease

(6.ts%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.ts%)
Miscellaneous

Safety

$ 2,281,349 $

s 3,412,482 $

1,337,483 $

2,158,924 $

558,389
1,131,20r

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CaIPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2020, the City has no reported outstanding amount of contributions payable to the pension
plan required for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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Note 10 - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Plan Description

The City reported that the only OPEB provided is medical plan coverage.

Medical coverage is currently provided through CaIPERS as permitted under the Public Employees'
Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). This coverage requires the employee to satisfy the
requirements for retirement under CaIPERS, which requires (l) attainment of age 50 (age 52, if a new
miscellaneous member to PERS on or after January 1,2013) with 5 years of State or public agency service
or (2) an approved disability retirement.

As a PEMHCA employer, the City is obligated to contribute toward the cost of retiree medical coverage
for the retiree's lifetime or until coverage is discontinued. This City most recently executed resolution
with CaIPERS defines the level of the City's contribution to be 100% of the retiree's monthly medical
premium, but not more than $347.77 per month.

Employees Covered

Membership in the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2020, the date of the latest actuarial
valuation:

Summary of Plan Member Counts

Number of active plan members 36

Number of inactive plan members currently receiving benefits 6

Number of inactive plan members entitled but not receiving benefits 0

Contributions

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the
City. The City determines the required contributions using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. The
required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements.
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Note 10 - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The City's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation date as of June 30, 2018.

Valuation Date

Funding Method
Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions :

Discount Rate

Inflation Rate
Salary Increase
Health Cost Trend Rates

6/3012018

Entry Age Normal Cost, level percent of pay

Market Value ($0, plan is not yet funded)

2.79% as of June 30,2019
2.98% as ofJune 30,2018
2.7504
3.25%
Medicalpremiums and claims costs by age are assumed

to increase once each year. The increases over the prior
year's levels are assumed to be effective on the dates

shown below:

Effective January 1 Premium Increase
2020 7.0%
2021 6.5%
2022 6.0%
2023 s5%

2024 &later 5.0%
The PEMHCA minimum required contribution (MEC)
is assumed to increase annually by 4.5 %

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the

CaIPERS 2014 experience study. Mortality
Improvement rates were based on the Macleod Watts

Scale 2017 applied generationally from 2018.

Mortality rate

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

Not applicable, the City has reported no plan assets as of June 30,2020

Discount Rate

The rate of return is based on a yield or index rate for Z}-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.
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Note 10 - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease

Total OPEB
Liability

(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

Net OPEB

Liability
(a) - (b)

Balance at 06130119

Changes for the year:
Service cost

Interest

Changes of assumptions

Contributions - employer

Benefit payments

Net changes
Balance at06130120

$ 3,989,379 s

313,522

127,822

165,842

$ 3,989,379

313,522

127,822

165,842
(27,143)27,143

(27,143)(27.t43)
580,043 580,043

g 4,569,422 s $ 4,569,422

The only assumption change reflected during this period is the change in the discount rates as required by
GASB 75.

Sensitivity of the City's Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be

if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or I percentage-point higher
than the current rate:

1o% Decrease

(t98%)
Discount Rate

(2.7e%)
1oZ Increase

(3.te%)
Net OPEB liability $ 5,595,646 s 4,569,422 $ 3,781,827

Sensitivity of the City's Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be
if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-
point higher than the current rate:

Current Trend -l% Current Trend Current Trend +1%

Net OPEB liability $ 3,645,535 $ 4,569,422 $ 6,051,125

Healthcare cost trend rate was assumed to start at8.0% (effective January 1,2009) and grade down to 50%

for years 2025 and thereafter.
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Note 10 - Post-Employment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020,the City recognized OPEB expense of $386,423. At June 30,2020,hhe
City reported defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Defened Outflows

of Resources

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

$ (221,857)

q_______i!,622 s (221,857)

The City will recognize the defened contributions in the next fiscal year. Other amounts reported as

deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30:

Assumption changes

Deferred contributions
$ 275,426

38,271

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

Total

468

468
468
468

468
51,229

$

$____r3r!2
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Note 11 - Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows or resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two items to
report in this category:

The City has $958,682 in pension related items that qualify to be reported in deferred outflows of
resources. The pension related deferred outflows of resources are described in Note 9.

The City has $313,697 in other post-employment benefit related items that qualify to be reported
in defened outflows of resources. The other post-employment benefit related deferred outflows of
resources are described in Note 10.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, defened inflows of resources,
represent an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has three items to report in this
category:

The City has $490,750 in pension related items that qualifu to be reported in defened inflows of
resources. The pension related deferred inflows of resources are described in Note 9.

The City has $221,857 in other post-employment benefit related items that qualif, to be reported
in defened inflows of resources. The other post-employment benefit related defened inflows of
resources are described in Note 10.

Unavailable revenues arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting and is reported only
in the govemmental funds balance sheet. The City has $1,755,293 in notes and loans receivable
reported in the Housing Fund as deferred inflows of resources reported for unavailable revenues.

a

a

a
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC F"INANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 13 - Risk Management

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA). The relationship
between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial
reporting purposes.

The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $500,000 of each worker's
compensation claim through the CSJVRMA. The City has the right to receive dividends or the obligation
to pay assessments based on a formula which, among other expenses, charges the City's account lor
liability losses under $10,000 and workers' compensation losses under $10,000. The CSJVRMA purchases
excess reinsurance from $1,000,000 to $15,000,000. The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which
provides Workers'Compensation coverage from $500,000 to $1,500,000 and purchases excess

reinsurance above $1,500,000 to the statutory limit.

The CSJVRMA is a consortium of 55 cities in San Joaquin Valley, California. It was established under the
provisions of Califomia Government Code Section 6500, et. seq. The CSJVRMA is governed by a Board
of Directors, which meets three to four times each year, consisting of one member appointed by each
member city. The day-to-day business is handled by a management group employed by the CSJVRMA.
The financial statements of CSJVRMA can be obtained at 1831 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

The latest audited financial information and the most current information available for CSJVRMA for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

$ 128,442,162
109,661,346

$ 18,780,816

$ 53,005,963

52,250,549

s 755,414

Note 14 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Excess of expenditures over appropriations - The following funds incured expenditures in excess of
appropriations in the following amounts for the year ended June 30,2020:

Total assets

Total liabilities
Net position

Total revenues

Total expenses

Increase/(decrease) in net position

General Fund:

Current
General government

Public ways and facilities
Public protection

Community development
Capital outlay
Debt Service

Principal
Interest

$ (67,239)

s (125,242)

s (62,654)

$ (288,902)

s (175,243)

$ (126,338)

$ (21,769)

The excess expenditures were covered by excess revenues during the fiscal year
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Note 15 - Contingencies

Federal and State Government Programs - The City participates in several federal and state grant
programs. These programs have been audited, as needed, in accordance with the provisions of the
Uniform Guidance and applicable state requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of
these audits. However, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the
amount, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be determined
at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 16 - Subsequent Events

The City evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through February 9,2021 the date
which these financial statements were available to be issued. Management concluded that no material
subsequent events have occurred since June 30, 2020 that required recognition or disclosure in such
financial statements.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL F'UND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2020

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/
(Negative)Original Final

Revenue
Taxes
Licenses and permits

Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current

General government

Public ways and facilities
Public protection

Culture and recreation
Community development

Capital outlay
Debt Service

Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Sales ofassets

Total other financing sources/(uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End ofyear

s 2,491,295 $

I 55,1 80

67,900

633,735
26,500
43,1 80

552,798
306,610

104,966
(22,008)
(5,056)

(13,767)
88,763

$ 2,491,295

1 55,1 80

67,800
633,735
26,500
43, I 80

179,550

3,597,240

179 550

3,044,093 $

467,790
172,766

611,727

21,444
29,413

268,313

3,597,240 4,609,546 r,012,306

238,143
455,839

2,117,711
296,346
210,581

203,517

305,382
581,081

2,190,365

291,211
499,493
378,760

238,143
455,839

2,117,7ll
296,346
210,581

203,517

(67,239)
(125,242)
(62,654)

5,1 35

(288,902)
(175,243)

(126,338)
(21,769)

(862,252)

225,157 150,054

600 6,050 5,450

600 600 (122,328) (122,928)

$ 75,703 $ 75,703 102,929 S 27,126

5,1 86,391

126,338
21,769

4,384,3893,522,137 3,522,137

Revenue over (under) expenditures 75,103 75,103

600

s 5,289,220
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3O,2O2O

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/
(Negative)

Revenue

Intergovemmental

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current

Community development

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Original Final

$ 5,094,705 $ 5,094,705 $ 365,626 $ (4,729,079)

5,094,705 5,094,705 365,626 (4,729,079)

2,262,984 2,057,618

305 203

2,568,187 2,568,187 510,569 2,057,618

Revenue over (under) expenditures 2,526,518 2,526,518 (144,943) (2,671,461),

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 2,526,518 $ 2,526,518 ( I 6,565) $ (2,543,083)

Fund Balance
Beginning of year

End ofyear

( 18,458)

$ (35,023)

2,262,984

305,203

205,366

305,203
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CITY'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30,2020

Fiscal Year Ending
Measurement Date

Discount Rate on Measurement Date

Total OPEB liability
Service cost

Interest

Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending

C ov er ed-employe e payr ol I
Net OPEB liability as a ok of covered payroll

314,831

98,956
(320,608)
(24.191\

580,043 1,530,730 68,988

30989,379 3,458,649 3,389,661

$ 4,569,422 $ 4,989,379 $ 3,458,649

$ 2,056,534 $

222%

313,522 $

127,822
165,842
(27.143\

286,261 $

l,l16,72l
159,327
(31.579)

2020 2019 2018

613012019

2.7g%r

6130120r8

2.98%
6130t2017

3.13%

$

2,004,877 $

249%
1,976,550

175%

Notes to Schedule:
Changes of assumptio,rzs : Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the
discount rate each period. Discount rates used in each period are illustrated above.

* GASB 75 requires presentation of the 10-year history of changes in the Net OPEB Liability. Only results
for years since GASB 75 was implemented are shown in the table.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30,2020

2015 20t6
Proportion ofthe net pension liability
Proportionate share ofthe net pension liability
Covered - employee payroll
Proportionate share ofthe net pension liability as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll
Plan's fiduciary net position
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability

Proportion ofthe net pension liability
Proportionate share ofthe net pension liability
Covered - employee payroll
Proportionate share ofthe net pension liability as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll
Plan's fiduciary net position
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the Total Pension Liability

0.04155o/o

$ 1,026,968

$ 1,142,658

89.88%

$ 4,258,380
80.57o/o

0.046810/o

s 1,284,149

$ 1,185,040

108.36Yo

s 4,422,483
77.50o/"

Miscellaneous

2017

0.04584o/o

s 1,592,387

$ l,135,047

140.29Yo

$ 4,509,21I $

73.90Yo

2018

0.04647%

$ 1,831,727

$ 1,085,707

2019

0.04743%

$ 1,787,565

$ r,1 12,066

160.74yo

5,46s,496
7 5.35o/o

768.71o/o

4,859,986 $

72.630/o

2020

0.03340o/o

$ 1,337,483

s 1,182,459

773.77o/o

$ 5,679,947

80.94o/o

Safety

20ts
0.04723o/o

$ 1,546,431

$ 799,827

793.35o/o

$ 5,122,434
76.81Yo

2016

0.03577o/o

s 1,471,316
$ 692,501

212.460/o

$ 5,447,021 $

78.73o/o

2017

0.03579o/o

$ 1,853,650

$ 692,040

2018

0.03484yo

$ 2,081,461

$ 683,756

2019

0.03472o/o

s 2,036,936

$ 726,367

280.43o/o

6,665,456
76.59o/o

2020

0.03458yo

$ 2,158,924

$ 740,988

291.36yo

$ 6,988,249
76.40o/o

267.85Vo

5,543,143 $

74.94Yo

304.42yo

6,046,607 $

74.39o/o

*Fiscal year 2014-15 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

Changes of Assumptions: None.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30,2020

Confractually required contribution (actuarially determined)
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions

Contributions defi ciency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Contractually required conhibution (actuarially determined)
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions

Contributions deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Miscellaneous

2015

$

$ I,142,658

10.85%

2016

$

$ 1,185,040 $

70.85o/o

1,135,047 $

75.70o/"

1,085,707 $

77.90o/o

2020

$ 224,323
(224,323)

$

1,112,066 $ 1,182,459

17.57o/o 18.97%

2020

s 297,385
(297.385\

$_____-______

$ 740,988

40.13Vo

2017 201 8 2019

178,195$194,343$l ,432
n78.195) (194,343)

-$

$ ll5,l54
(l 15.I54)

$ 200,1 t2 $

o00.112\
95

95

$ -$

2015 2016

$ 145,022 $ 234,881 $
(r4s.022\ (234.881)

Safety

2017 2018 2019

224,508 $ 240,914 $ 260,485
(240.914\ (260,485)

$ $ $

$ 799,827 $ 692,501 $ 692,040 $ 683,756 S 726,367

32.44o/o 35.23o/o 35.86Vo

$ $

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 18.l3Yo 33.92o/o

*Fiscal year 2014-15 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JUttE 30,2020

Gas Tax
Local

Transportation
Development
Imoact Fees

$ 385,220

385.220

Measure C
Funds

Landscape
Maintenance

Public
Sefetv sB1

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI.ANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expense

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities

Fund Balance
Restricted

Public ways and facilities
Public safety programs

Capital projects and improvements

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

$ 151,671 $

151 671

8,1 03

1.926

10.029

141,642

141.642

151.6'11 $

448,637

92,351

540.988

7s1,311 $
lf 701

765.012

330

9.247

9.577

75s"43s

755.435

765.012 S

I 1,806 $

I 1.806

4,s28
|.696

6.224

5,582

5-582

I 1.806 $

198,422 $

1.429

I 99"8s I

3,477

7.549

11.026

I 88,82s

I 88,825

199.851 $

$

$

Total

92,929 $

21.508

2,039,996

1 28.989

I14.437 ? t6R AR{

l3 17,996
27.3ss

13 45 351

114.424 1,549,589

I 88,825
385 220

114 424 2.123.634

114,437 S 2.168.985$

1,545

6,937

8 482

s32,s06

532.506

540 988

38s"220

385.220

s 38s,220
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEI{UE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Gas Tax
Local

Transportation
Development
ImDact Fees

Measure C
Funds

Landscape
Maintenance Puhlic Safetv

35,716 $

sBr Total
Revenue

Taxes and assessments

Licenses and permits

lntergovernmental

Investment income

Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenditures
Current

Public ways and facilities
Public safety

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

$

177,376

1,462

I 78-838

1 18,230

I 1 8.230

60,608

60,608

350,093

3,1 10

3s3 203

163,278

163.278

189,92s

189,925

$

2'14,019

3,124

277 l+5

194,127

194.127

83,01 6

83,016

672.419

755.435 $

$

212,962
1,279

38

214.279

123,908

10 5R?

163.495

50,784

s0,784

138 041

188.825 $

160,262

160.262

s6 57s

96 575

63,687

63,687

50.737

t14.424 $

35,716

52,224

1,17 4,712

9,515
38

$ $ $ $
s2,224

52.224

4,t55

4.1 55

48,069

48,069

337 l5l
L_J91220

540

36.256

47,069

?R ?tn

85 389

(4e,133)

(4e,t33)

1.272.205

619,279

I 23,908

4,155
't'1 go'l

825.249

446,956

446,956

1.676.678

2.123.634

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance

Beginning ofyear
End ofyear

81.034 342 sgl
14t 642 S 532 506$ $

54 715

s.s82 $
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CITY OF FIREBAUGH

SCHEDULE OF NET REVENUE AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE
JUNE 30,2020

Operating Revenue

Charges for services

Delinquent fees

Waste Discharge fees

Toma Tek Service and Reimbursement Revenue

Other revenue
Total Available Revenues

Operating Expense
Personnel

Utilities
Supplies and materials
Maintenance and operations
Contractual services

Other expenses

Total operations and maintenance

Nonoperating Revenue/(Expense)
Investment income

Total nonoperating revenue/(expense)

Total Net Revenue Available for Debt Service

Debt Service Requirements
2013 Water Revenue Refunding Bond
2016 Water Refunding Bond - Series 2016A
2016 Wastewater Refunding Bond - Series 2016A
Total Debt Service

Net Revenue after Debt Service

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Rate Stabili zation Fund :

Beginning balance at July 1,2019
Transfer to Water Enterprise Fund

Ending balance at June 30,2020

Business-Tvoe Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sewer Water

1,504,102 s$ 1,696,493

33,141
16,676

44,994
871 19,795

1,566,643 1,739,429

585,207

124,259

29,555

41,232

1 10,085

77,374

575,079

342,137

61,276

122,042
75,575

48,155

967 712 7,224,264

33,204 46,810

33,204 46,810

632,135

177,163

561,975

126,638

202,188

l'17 163 328,826

$ 454,972 $ 233,149

$

3.57 l.7t

135,000s

s $ 135,000
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Lan T. Kimoto

John P. Burt

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Firebaugh, Califomia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Firebaugh,
California, (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated February 9,2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's intemal control over
financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealmess is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identif,/ all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknpesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not
been identified.

9o1 "N" STREET, SUITE 1o4 FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622 PHONE 559.659.3045 FAX 559.659.0615



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

February 9,2021
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